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*NOTE
Currently Internet Explorer is the only web 
browser that is compatible with the Applicant 
Background Check Portal.
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Applicant Fingerprinting Online Services 
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https://abcp.riag.ri.gov/ri/index_ri.htm

This is the main page for the ABCP. 

Here a Provider Administrator OR 
User can:

 View General Program 
Information

 BCI Location Information
 Access FAQ’s-Frequently 

Asked Questions
 Registration-Not in Use at this 

time
 Provider Use-Register for an 

Account-New Programs 
ONLY

 Log in to the ABCP Portal

https://abcp.riag.ri.gov/ri/index_ri.htm


ABCP-Provider Administrator USER Home Page
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This is the “HOME” page 
once a provider logs in 
correctly

There are 6 Tabs with 
Various Functions that can 
be accessed from the home 
page

1. Registration
2. Applicant Check 
3. Manage User
4. Reports
5. Change Password
6. Log Out



ABCP- Provider USER Home Page
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This is the “HOME” page 
once a provider logs in 
correctly

There are 5 Tabs with 
Various Functions that can 
be accessed from the home 
page

1. Registration
2. Applicant Check 
3. Reports
4. Change Password
5. Log Out
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Applicant Registration-Process Steps Overview
Step 1-Register the Applicant
Step 2- Check The 7 External Registries 

a) Ineligible-Applicant receives Ineligibility letter/PROCESS STOPS HERE-All 7 registries must be checked and 
results saved regardless of the entry.

b) Eligible- Applicant receives Eligibility letter for Fingerprinting.
Note-Applicant’s will receive the notice automatically ONLY IF you entered a valid email address for the Applicant on the registration 
screen. If there is no email address or you entered their email address in error you have to print it for them 

Step 3- Applicant gets Fingerprinted-Application sent for Processing
Step 4-Results Received

A. Disqualified- Disqualified for Employment*
B. Qualified-Qualified for Employment*
C. No Decision-Results will be weeks/months, Hiring is a the Employer's discretion*

Step 5-Enter Hiring Disposition
A. The Provider Agency clicks either the Hire OR Not Hire Icon in the Individual Applicants file in the ABCP 

Portal. 
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*The Office of Attorney General is NOT ALLOWED to make any decisions regarding 
employment status; this decision rests with you as the Provider Agency.
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Register a New Applicant
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https://abcp.riag.ri.gov/ri/index_ri.htm

1. Click on Log in 
under APS Login

1

https://abcp.riag.ri.gov/ri/index_ri.htm


Register a New Applicant
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https://abcp.riag.ri.gov/rilogin

1. Enter your assigned User Name as 
given by the NBCP Administrator(s)

2. Enter your password

3. Click 

*NOTE-Unlike most websites the ABCP 
User Name log on field is case sensitive. 
YOU MUST input your user name exactly 
as it was assigned to you. 

2

1

3

https://abcp.riag.ri.gov/rilogin


Register a New Applicant
4. Click on Registration Tab

5. Click on Registration Link
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5

4

This is the main login in screen after you 
successfully enter your User Name & Password



Register a New Applicant
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6. Enter the 
Applicant’s 
Information into 
each field

*NOTE: You will not be 
allowed to move forward if 
any of the yellow highlighted 
required fields have errors or 
are blank. 

7. Click Next 

**SPECIAL NOTE**
An email address is not required at this time for Applicants.
However, this ELECTRONIC BASED PORTAL sends 
communications and registration information via email 
addresses on file  (NOT PHYSICAL ADDRESSES) 
It would be cost effective if you start utilizing the Portal for 
all of its capabilities right from  the inception of the program 
as an email may be a required field in the near future. 

6
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Applicant Fingerprinting Online Services 
8. Review the information that 

you entered to ensure there 
are no spelling errors, etc. 
(if you need to make a 
change click MODIFY)

9. If the Applicant is going to 
be enrolled in the Rap Back 
Program please select 
“YES” or “NO” Respectfully 

ALL LTC PROVIDERS MUST 
SELECT YES

NOTE: RAP BACK will say 
NO after clicking NEXT., 

Going forward it is turned on 
when the Provider Clicks the 

HIRE ICON and turned off 
when the Provider Clicks the 

TERMINATION ICON

10. Click Next*

* If you need to modify the 
application click MODIFY make 
the changes and click Next and 
you will return to this screen. 

16
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9
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Register a New Applicant

11. Once you click next 
you will get a 
confirmation of 
Registration with a 
Registration ID.

12.Click                for           
your records

13.Click                        if 
you are going to 
register another 
applicant.

14. If you are complete  
Click          to Return 
to the home page

17

11

12

This is a what the clicking Print Receipt generates

IMPORTANT-This letter is used for other programs as 
well. The reference to NOT entering a Social Security 

Number and bringing this form to RIAG is NOT 
APPLICABLE To Long Term Care Applicants.
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Check the 7 External Registries

– There are 7 registries all Providers must check to ensure there are no disqualifiers before sending the 
applicant to the BCI office to get fingerprinted. They are:

19

Registry Registry Website
1. National Sex Offender Registry https://www.nsopw.gov/en-US

2. Rhode Island Sex Offender Registry http://www.paroleboard.ri.gov/sexoffender/agree.php

3. Excluded Parties List System(EPLS)- (SAMS) http://catalog.data.gov/dataset- https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1

4. Office of the Inspector General Exclusions List http://www.oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/index.asp

5. Rhode Island Nurses Aid Registry & License http://209.222.157.144/RIDOH_Verification/Search.aspx?facility=N
&SubmitComplaint=Y

6. Rhode Island Disciplinary Actions Database http://www.health.ri.gov/lists/disciplinaryactions/

7. Rhode Island Court Connect Defendant Search 
Database

http://courtconnect.courts.ri.gov/pls/ri_adult/ck_public_qry_main.cp
_main_idx

https://www.nsopw.gov/en-US
http://www.paroleboard.ri.gov/sexoffender/agree.php
http://catalog.data.gov/dataset-
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1
http://www.oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/index.asp
http://209.222.157.144/RIDOH_Verification/Search.aspx?facility=N&SubmitComplaint=Y
http://www.health.ri.gov/lists/disciplinaryactions/
http://courtconnect.courts.ri.gov/pls/ri_adult/ck_public_qry_main.cp_main_idx


Legislative Disqualifying Offenses for NBCP

1. Abuse neglect and/or exploitation of adults 
with severe impairments 

2. Assault on persons sixty (60) years of age or 
older 

3. Assault with intent to commit specified 
felonies (murder robbery rape burglary or the 
abominable and detestable crimes against 
nature) 

4. Burglary 
5. Exploitation of elders 
6. Felony embezzlement  
7. Felony obtaining money under false 

pretenses  
8. Felony assault 
9. Felony drug offenses  

10. Felony larceny or felony banking law 
violations or a crime under section 1128(a) of 
the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. §1320a-
7(a))

11. First-degree sexual assault  
12. First-degree arson 
13. Involuntary manslaughter 
14. Murder 
15. Patient abuse neglect or mistreatment of 

patients
16. Robbery 
17. Second-degree sexual assault  
18. Third-degree sexual assault  
19. Voluntary manslaughter 

20
Reference: http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/billtext14/senatetext14/s2652.pdf

http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/billtext14/senatetext14/s2652.pdf
http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/billtext14/senatetext14/s2652.pdf


Check the 7 External Registries
Once an applicant is 

Registered and is assigned a 
Registration ID the entry will 
be waiting in the Applicant 

Queue

1. Click on the Applicant 
Check Link

2. You Can:
a. Enter the Registration 

ID of the Applicant  to 
get results for that 
applicant only 

OR
b. Just click* 

*Results returned will be 
for the pre-populated 
dates. You can change 
these fields to search by 
dates of your choice

21
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Check the 7 External Registries

3. Select the Applicant you 
need to check Double 
Click on the Applicants 
File.

22

3



Entering Registry Results 
4. The blue hyperlinks will take you 

directly to each individual registry 
website

5. After checking the website you will 
identify if the person is:

A. Cleared (No record/hit found)
B. Rejected (due to a disqualifying 

event)
C. Accepted (Although they may 

have a hit, it does not meet the 
requirements on the “Disqualifying 
Offenses List” but a hit on their 
record for something else. It is the 
Employers choice whether to 
Accept what was on the report 
and continue with the hiring 
process. Or click rejected.

6. Click on Save after you process 
each Registry* 

*NOTE-You must click SAVE after each 
registry check and before you click the 
ELIGIBLE OR INELIGIBLE ICONS
If you DO NOT click SAVE, you may 
have to CANCEL the Applicant’s 
Registration, Re-resister the Applicant 
and RE-ENTER the Registry Check 
Results. 

23

5

6
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National Sex Offender Registry 

1. Go to: 
https://www.nsopw.go
v/en-US

2. Enter:
a) Applicants First Name
b) Applicants Last Name

3. Click on

25

2

3

1

https://www.nsopw.gov/en-US


National Sex Offender Registry

4. Read the Conditions of Use

5. Click “I agree and acknowledge 
the terms of NSOPW”

6. Enter the Code in the Box

7. Click on Continue

26

4

5

6

7



National Sex Offender Registry-Results
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8. If no results are found you will see Exhibit  A
9. If results are found or there is someone with a nick name or phonetic name similar a “hit” might return. 

Please be diligent in determining if this is your applicant or not. See exhibit B
10. After reviewing the information go back to the portal and enter Cleared, Accepted or Rejected as 

appropriate and click on Save. 
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Rhode Island Sex Offender Registry 
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Rhode Island Sex Offender Registry Search

1. Go to 
http://www.parole
board.ri.gov/sexo
ffender/agree.ph
p

2. Read the 
Website 
Disclosures

3. Click on

29

1

2

3

http://www.paroleboard.ri.gov/sexoffender/agree.php


Rhode Island Sex Offender Registry

4. Click on “ List all Level II 
offenders”

5. Search for the name of 
the applicant

6. If the name is not found 
go back to the “Offender 
Listings” Page 

http://www.paroleboard.ri.g
ov/sexoffender/olist/search.
php

30

5

4

6

http://www.paroleboard.ri.gov/sexoffender/olist/listings.php?level=II
http://www.paroleboard.ri.gov/sexoffender/olist/search.php


Rhode Island Sex Offender Registry

6. Click on “List all Level III 
offenders” 

7. Search for the name of 
the applicant

8. After reviewing the 
information go back to 
the portal and enter 
Cleared, Accepted or 
Rejected as appropriate 
and click on Save. 

31

7

8

http://www.paroleboard.ri.gov/sexoffender/olist/listings.php?level=III
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Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)-SAM-System for Award Management

1. Go to: 
http://catalog.dat
a.gov/dataset 
https://www.sam.
gov/portal/SAM/#
1

2. Click

33

1

2

http://catalog.data.gov/dataset-https:/www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1


Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)-SAM-System for Award 
Management- Results
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3. Click on 
“Advanced 
Search-
Exclusion

4. Click “OK” 
that you 
acknowled
ge the 
Terms of 
Use

4
3



Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)-SAM-System for Award 
Management- Results
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5.
A. Name of the 

Applicant
B. The Applicants 

Social Security 
Number

C. Ensure the Status 
Box says “All “ or 
“Active”

D. Click on 

5 d

5 a, b, c

5



Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)-SAM-System for Award Management-
Results
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6. If no results are found you will see Exhibit  A
7. If results are found or there is someone with a nick name or phonetic name similar a “hit” might return. Please be 

diligent in determining if this is your applicant or not. See Exhibit B
8. After reviewing the information go back to the portal and enter Cleared, Accepted or Rejected as appropriate and 

click on Save. 
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Office of the Inspector General Exclusions List
1. Go to: http://www.oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/index.asp
2. Click on “Online Searchable Database”
3. Enter the:

a) Last name of the applicant
b) The first name of the applicant

4. Click on

38

1

2

3
4

http://www.oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/index.asp


Office of the Inspector General Exclusions List
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6. If no results are found you will see Exhibit  A
7. If results are found or there is someone with a nick name or phonetic name similar a “hit” might return. 

Please be diligent in determining if this is your applicant or not. See Exhibit B
8. After reviewing the information go back to the portal and enter Cleared, Accepted or Rejected as 

appropriate and click on Save. 
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Rhode Island Nurses Aid Registry & License 

1. Go to: 
http://209.222.157.144/R
IDOH_Verification/Searc
h.aspx?facility=N&Submi
tComplaint=Y

2. Enter the applicants 
information into each 
field

3. Click on

41

1

2

3

http://209.222.157.144/RIDOH_Verification/Search.aspx?facility=N&SubmitComplaint=Y


Rhode Island Nurses Aid Registry & License 
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4. If no results are found you will see Exhibit  A-There is no license on file-If the Applicant is NOT supposed to 
have a license and NO results are found click CLEARED on the “Registry Results” screen in the ABCP Portal

5. If results are found or there is someone with a nick name or phonetic name similar a “hit” might return. Please 
be diligent in determining if this is your applicant or not. See Exhibit B-

6. After reviewing the information go back to the portal and enter Cleared, Accepted or Rejected as appropriate and 
click on Save. 
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RI Disciplinary Actions Database
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Rhode Island Disciplinary Actions Database

1. Go to: 
http://www.health.ri.gov/
lists/disciplinaryactions/

2. Enter the Applicant’s 
last name in the search 
field.  

3. Click on 

44

1

2

3

http://www.health.ri.gov/lists/disciplinaryactions/


Rhode Island Disciplinary Actions Database
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4. If no results are found you will see Exhibit  A
5. If results are found or there is someone with a nick name or phonetic name similar a “hit” might return. 

Please be diligent in determining if this is your applicant or not. See Exhibit B
6. After reviewing the information go back to the portal and enter Cleared, Accepted or Rejected as 

appropriate and click on Save. 
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RI Court Connect Defendant Search 
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Rhode Island Court Connect Defendant Search Database

1. Go to: 
http://courtconnect.
courts.ri.gov/pls/ri_
adult/ck_public_qr
y_cpty.cp_personc
ase_setup_idx

2. Click on Search by 
Defendant Name  

3. Read the 
Disclaimer

4. Click on Accept

47

1

2

3

4

http://courtconnect.courts.ri.gov/pls/ri_adult/ck_public_qry_cpty.cp_personcase_setup_idx


Rhode Island Court Connect Defendant Search Database

5. Click “Check for 
Phonetic Search and 
Partial; Last Name  

6. Enter the Applicant's 
Last Name and First 
Name 

7. Click On

48

6

7

5



Rhode Island Court Connect Defendant Search Database
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8. If no results are found you will see Exhibit  A
9. If results are found or there is someone with a nick name or phonetic name similar to the one you are 

entering a “hit” might return. Please be diligent in determining if this is your applicant or not. See 
Exhibit B

10. After reviewing the information go back to the portal and enter Cleared, Accepted or Rejected as 
appropriate and click on Save. 
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Entering Results & Notifications-Eligible
– Once you complete all of the registry 

checks, the person is either 
Ineligible to hire or Eligible to hire. 

– When you click on the 
icon the ABCP will  notify you that an 
the letter was emailed** to the 
applicant.  The Registration  will then 
move to the BCI Queue and the 
Applicant is ready for fingerprinting. 

**If there is no email on file the ABCP 
will notify the user and the option to 
print the letter will appear after  the 
Applicants record is closed and then 
reopened. 

– The Applicant must bring their 
printed email or their mobile version 
and a check or money order for 
$35.00 made out to RI BCI, or simply 
present a credit card. 

– The Applicant then goes to the BCI 
Unit for fingerprinting

51

NOTICE-Disclosure: Each person with authority to access and choose an Applicants Eligibility/Ineligibility is logged into 
the ABCP with their  unique ID an password. By selecting the Eligible Icon the Representative from the Provider 

Organization is certifying he or she verified the seven registries mandated by the  NBCP Legislation. 



Entering Results & Notifications Ineligible
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– When you click the                                                                    

icon, the 
ABCP will email the 
Applicant and notify 
them on their 
ineligibility if a correct 
and valid email** 
address was entered 
when the Applicant 
was registered. 

**If there is no email on 
file the ABCP will notify 
the user and the option 
to print the letter will 
appear after  the 
Applicants record is 
closed and then 
reopened. 

–
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Qualified or Disqualified

1.The Applicant’s fingerprints are processed.
2.The results are entered into the ABCP for the applicant.
3.The results will read: Qualified or Disqualified
4.Once the results are entered the Applicant will receive an email in 

either case.
5. The Provider Organization can:

1. Monitor the progress and see the result under the BCI Qualification Column 
on the Applicant Check Tab/Applicant Queue. 

2. Wait for the email notification generated to the ABCP-Provider 
Administrator’s email. 

54



No Decision

1. If the BCI Unit enters a “No Decision” this result will appear in the 
Applicant queue under the BCI Qualification Column.

2.A result of “No Decision” means the expected turn around time of 
the Applicant's results is projected to be weeks/months. 

3.The Provider can choose to Hire or Not Hire the Applicant*
4.When the final update is received, the BCI Unit will then select 

"Qualified" or "Disqualified". At this point if  the Applicant was hired, 
the Provider can continue employing the applicant or terminate the 
applicant at their discretion. (see Slide 56) 

55

*The Office of Attorney General is NOT ALLOWED to make any decisions 
regarding employment status; this decision rests with the Individual 

Provider Agency.



No Decision-Final Results
Final Result – Qualified

Provider Actions
1. If the Provider clicked  on the "Hire" icon after a "No Decision"  result appeared then:                     

-No action is needed, the Applicant is already hired.
2. If the Provider clicked the "Not-Hire" icon after a "No Decision"  result appeared, and would like to HIRE 

the Applicant then:
-The Provider must process the Applicant as a "New Applicant" following the steps in the ABCP Quick 
Reference Guide.

Final Result – Disqualified
Provider Actions

1. If the Provider clicked on the "Hire" icon after a "No Decision"  result appeared then:
-The Provider can click on the "Termination" icon at their discretion.

2. If the Provider clicked the "Not-Hire" icon after a "No Decision"  result appeared then:
-No action required as the Applicant was not hired. 

56



Qualification Letter Example-Applicant

– To be populated at a future date

57



Qualification Letter Example-Provider
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Disqualification Letter Example-Applicant

– To be populated at a future date
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Disqualification Letter Example-Provider

60
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Entering Hiring Disposition
1. Click Applicant Check 

2. You Can:
a. Enter the Registration 

ID of the Applicant  to 
get results for that 
applicant only 

OR
b. Just click* 

*Results returned will be 
for the pre-populated 
dates. You can change 
these fields to search by 
dates of your choice

62

2

3

Entering a HIRE/Non HIRE date is essential for proper 
program reporting and compliance. PLEASE Ensure you 
click on the icon that matched your decision as soon as 
you can to prevent system back ups. 



Entering Hiring Disposition

63

4. Click on the Hire Icon
a) If you are not 

going to hire the 
Applicant- click 
the Non Hire 
icon. 

5. A dialog box will 
appear asking your to 
confirm your decision 
and asking you to 
continue. Click OK if 
you are going to 
proceed. 

6. A dialog box will 
appear confirming 
your decision.

 The Applicant’s file is up to 
date. And the Hire Date will 
Appear on the Applicant 
Check Screen 

4

5

6
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Enter a Termination Date-*Employee 
Separates from Employment
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Entering a Termination Date

1. Click on the Applicants 
Check Link

2. Enter the Register 
Date Begin & End 
Dates or Click                 
if you are satisfied with 
the auto populated 
dates 
You can always enter 

the Registration ID to get 
to the specific Applicant

3. Find the Applicant you 
are searching for and 
click on their specific 
Link

This will open their file

65
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Entering a Termination Date

66

4. Click the 
Termination Icon 

5. A dialog box will 
appear asking your 
to confirm your 
decision and asking 
you to continue. 
Click OK if you are 
going to proceed. 

6. A dialog box will 
appear confirming 
your decision.

 The Applicant’s file 
is up to date. And 
the Termination 
Date Appear on the 
Applicant Check 
Screen 

 Rap Back Is turned 
off.

5

4
6



National Background Check  Program (NBCP) 
ABCP Provider Portal Maintenance 
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Modify a Registration

1. Go to the Registration 
Tab

2. Click on Modify 
Registration

69
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Modify a Registration

3. Enter the Registration ID 
and Date of Birth and 
Click 

OR
4. Enter the Last Name, 

First Name, Last 4 digits 
of the Applicant’s Social 
Security Number and 
their Date of Birth and 
Click 

70

3

4



Modify a Registration

5. The Applicant’s 
Registration 
Information will 
appear. 

6. Select

7. Modify the 
information that 
needs updating

8. Click on  

71
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8
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Modify a Registration

7. Receive Confirmation of the 
modification

72

7
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Cancel a Registration

1. Go to the Registration 
Tab

2. Click on Cancel 
Registration

74
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Cancel a Registration

75

3. Enter the Registration 
ID and Date of Birth 
and Click 

OR
4. Enter the Last Name, 

First Name, Last 4 
digits of the 
Applicant’s Social 
Security Number and 
their Date of Birth and 
Click 

3

4



Cancel a Registration

76

5. Verify the Applicant 
you want to delete to 
ensure it is the correct 
Applicant

6. Click on 

7. Once you receive the 
confirmation the 
Applicant has been 
deleted from ABCP.

5

6

7
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Check a Registration Status

1. Go to the Registration 
Tab

2. Click on Check Status

78
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Check a Registration Status

79

3. Enter the Registration 
ID and Date of Birth 
and Click 

OR
4. Enter the Last Name, 

First Name, Last 4 
digits of the 
Applicant’s Social 
Security Number and 
their Date of Birth and 
Click 

3

4



Check a Registration Status

5. On this screen you will 
see the Registration 
Information for the 
Applicant 

6. The report in the small 
box gives you the status 
and the options to print, 
save, or email. 

80

5

6 6



National Background Check  Program (NBCP) 

Change Your Own Password
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Change Your Own Password

82

1

2

3
4

1. Click on Change 
Password

2. Enter your OLD 
Password

3. Enter the NEW 
Password

4. Confirm The 
NEW Password

5. Click on Change
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Add a Provider Agency User
*PROVIDER ADMIN FUNCTION ONLY

84



Adding a Provider Agency User

1. Go to “Manage User”

2. Click On Maintain User 
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Adding a Provider Agency User

1. Click on 
ADD
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Adding a Provider Agency 
User
1. Enter USER ID-First Initial, Last Name 

followed by two numbers 0-9

2. Enter Password- One Cap, letters & 
Numbers must be 9 characters

3. Reenter the same password

4. Enter the User’s Last Name

5. Enter the User’s First  Name

6. Enter the User’s Job Title

7. Enter the User’s Email address

8. Click on Save 

**The system will update the information, To 
communicate a User ID & Password you must 
either deliver it in person or securely email it.  

* Password should***NOTE-have user change 
their passwords once they receive their initial 
log in information. * Password should be 8 to 
12 characters long with a combination of letters 
and numbers and a mix of upper and lower 
cases. 
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Modify a Provider Agency User/Reset 
Password
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Modifying a Provider Agency User

1. Go to “Manage User”

2. Click On Maintain User 
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Modifying a Provider Agency User

1. Select the file you 
want to Modify 

2. Click on Modify
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Modify a Provider Agency User 

91

You can Modify a Users Name, Email or 
Password*

1. Change the information in the above 
mentioned fields as applicable.**

2. Click on OK (the box will be 
highlighted)

**The system will update the information, 
To communicate a password change or 
reset, to the user, email them securely or 
deliver the information directly. Instruct 
the user to log into the website and 
change their password.

* Password should be 8 to 12 characters 
long with a combination of letters and 
numbers and a mix of upper and lower 
cases. 

1

2
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Deleting a Provider Agency User

1. Go to “”Manage User”

2. Click On Maintain User 
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Deleting a Provider Agency User

1. Select the file you 
want to Delete 

2. Click on Delete
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Change the Name on Your Organization’s 
Correspondence 
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Change the Name on your Organization’s Correspondence 

1. Go to “”Manage User”

2. Click On Maintain User 
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Change the Name on your Organization’s Correspondence 

1. Select the  
Provider Admin 
radio button

2. Click on  Modify

97
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Change the Name on your Organization’s Correspondence* 

3. Enter the First 
Name of the 
NBCP-Provider 
Administrator

4. Enter the Last 
Name of the 
NBCP-Provider 
Administrator

5. Click on OK

98
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5

*Note: If the name of your 
organization changes, please 
contact the Provider Liaison 
directly. 
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Provider Administrator Password Reset
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Provider Administrator Password Reset*
1. Open a new email
2. Address to robert.a.walsh-jr@hpe.com
3. Enter in the Subject Line (MUST BE TYPED EXACTLY AS 

SHOWN) NBCP-Password Reset
4. Be sure to send from the email we have on file
5. Once your request is received it will be logged, and a return 

email with a randomly generated password will arrive via Zix-
Mail-Encrypted- All requests will be answered within 2 business
days from receipt

6. Open the secure email
7. Log on to abcp.riag.ri.gov/ri/index_ri.htm
8. Go to Change Password and Change your Password**
9. Enter the password you received via email in the “OLD 

PASSWORD” field
10. Choose a new password using the criteria below
11. Reenter the password you chose 
12. Click on Change
** Password should be 8 to 12 characters long with a combination of 
letters and numbers and a mix of upper and lower cases.

100

9

10&11

*NOTE-this process is subject to 
change. All documentation will be 
available on the ABCP Website after 
the go live date

mailto:robert.a.walsh-jr@hpe.com
https://abcp.riag.ri.gov/ri/index_ri.htm
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Acronyms, Terms & Definitions
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Acronym/Term Definition
ABCP Applicant Background Check Portal

Accepted Passed Registry Checks with NO Disqualifiers but The Employer has chosen to accept a hit from one of the registries 
for an offense that is not on the Legislative Disqualifications List. 

(I)AFIS (Integrated) Automated Fingerprint Identification System-also known as NGI-Next Generation Identification program.

Applicant Individual seeking employment who must receive clearance through the National Background Check Program.

BCI Bureau of Criminal Identification/Background Check Investigation 

Cleared Passed Registry Checks with NO items from The Legislative Disqualifications List or any other hits form any of the 
seven registries.

Disqualified An offense(es) appeared on the BCI that Disqualifies the applicant from being cleared for hiring. 

Eligible Referring to an Applicant, the Provider Agency has determined after checking the "7" Registries that the Applicant is 
Cleared and  "Eligible " to move forward with the hiring process and go for their fingerprinting and BCI Check. 

EOHHS Executive Office of Health & Human Services- Agency Sponsoring the NBCP Grant.

Ineligible 
Referring to an Applicant, the Provider Agency has determined after checking the "7" Registries that the Applicant is 
Rejected and  "Ineligible " to move forward with the hiring process and will not go for their fingerprinting and BCI 
Check. 
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Acronym/Term Definition
Interruption of 

Service
An Applicant who leaves an organization and remains  obtains another job and there is no interruption of service, 
(break in employment) the receiving agency /Applicant will not have to pay for the BCI to be performed again If an 
Applicant has a interruption in service  the BCI Fee $35.00 applies and will have to be paid again. 

Legislative 
Disqualifications

A list of disqualifiers all Providers/Facility’s must use when evaluating whether an Applicant is Eligible or Ineligible 
for hire.

NBCP National Background Check  Program.

Provider, Facility,
Entity or Organization Businesses/categories of  Businesses who are required to implement the laws and  regulations of the NBCP-ABCP.

No Decision After an Applicants information was sent for processing, the results returned are undetermined therefore No Decision 
could be made. Hiring is at the discretion of the Employer.

Provider  
Administrator User

An Organization's Representative to the NBCP-ABCP. Serves as the Point of Contact for the Program and the 
Authorized Administrator of ABCP to give Access/Permission Assignments at the Individual Organization Level.

Provider 
User/Operator

An approved User/Operator of the ABCP. Given access and permissions by the Provider Administrator User at the 
Individual Organization Level.

Rejected An Applicant’s Registry Check had a hit that is on the Legislative Disqualifications List. 

RIAG Rhode Island Attorney General-Executer of NBCP Grant- Responsible for all IT Operations and Fingerprint Processing 
for the NBCP & ABCP
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References & Resources
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Resource/ Reference Subject Location
Integrated Automated Fingerprint Identification System https://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/fingerprints_biometrics/iafis/iafis

CMS National Background Check Program-Home Page http://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Provider-Enrollment-and-
Certification/SurveyCertificationGenInfo/BackgroundCheck.html

Definition of Rap Back http://www.bjs.gov/index.cfm?ty=tdtp&tid=4

Long Term Care Facilities http://health.ri.gov/licensing/healthcare/#residential

NBCP-For LTC Facilities Frequently Asked Questions http://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Provider-Enrollment-and-
Certification/SurveyCertificationGenInfo/Downloads/backgroundcheckqanda.pdf

Nursing Facilities Compliance with Federal Regulations 
for Reporting Allegations of Abuse or Neglect

http://oig.hhs.gov/oei/reports/oei-07-13-00010.pdf

Nursing Staffing Agency http://health.ri.gov/licensing/healthcare/#nurse

Rhode Island Attorney General Bureau of Criminal 
Investigation

http://www.bjs.gov/index.cfm?ty=tdtp&tid=4

Rhode Island Legislation Regarding NBCP http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/billtext14/senatetext14/s2652.pdf

https://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/fingerprints_biometrics/iafis/iafis
http://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Provider-Enrollment-and-Certification/SurveyCertificationGenInfo/BackgroundCheck.html
http://www.bjs.gov/index.cfm?ty=tdtp&tid=4
http://health.ri.gov/licensing/healthcare/#residential
http://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Provider-Enrollment-and-Certification/SurveyCertificationGenInfo/Downloads/backgroundcheckqanda.pdf
http://oig.hhs.gov/oei/reports/oei-07-13-00010.pdf
http://health.ri.gov/licensing/healthcare/#nurse
http://www.bjs.gov/index.cfm?ty=tdtp&tid=4
http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/billtext14/senatetext14/s2652.pdf


Thank you!
For Further Information 

Please Contact:

Rob Walsh, MBA
Liaison-National Background Check Program

E-mail: robert.a.walsh-jr@hpe.com

107


	Applicant Background Check Portal�Quick Reference Guide
	Table of Contents
	Table of Contents
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	*NOTE
	Applicant Fingerprinting Online Services 
	ABCP-Provider Administrator USER Home Page
	ABCP- Provider USER Home Page
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Applicant Registration-Process Steps Overview
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Register a New Applicant
	Register a New Applicant
	Register a New Applicant
	Register a New Applicant
	Applicant Fingerprinting Online Services 
	Register a New Applicant
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Check the 7 External Registries
	Legislative Disqualifying Offenses for NBCP
	Check the 7 External Registries
	Check the 7 External Registries
	Entering Registry Results 
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	National Sex Offender Registry 
	National Sex Offender Registry
	National Sex Offender Registry-Results
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Rhode Island Sex Offender Registry Search
	Rhode Island Sex Offender Registry
	Rhode Island Sex Offender Registry
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)-SAM-System for Award Management�
	Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)-SAM-System for Award Management- Results�
	Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)-SAM-System for Award Management- Results�
	Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)-SAM-System for Award Management- Results
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Office of the Inspector General Exclusions List
	Office of the Inspector General Exclusions List
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Rhode Island Nurses Aid Registry & License �
	Rhode Island Nurses Aid Registry & License 
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Rhode Island Disciplinary Actions Database
	Rhode Island Disciplinary Actions Database
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Rhode Island Court Connect Defendant Search Database�
	Rhode Island Court Connect Defendant Search Database�
	Rhode Island Court Connect Defendant Search Database�
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Entering Results & Notifications-Eligible
	Entering Results & Notifications Ineligible
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Qualified or Disqualified
	No Decision
	No Decision-Final Results
	Qualification Letter Example-Applicant
	Qualification Letter Example-Provider
	Disqualification Letter Example-Applicant
	Disqualification Letter Example-Provider
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Entering Hiring Disposition
	Entering Hiring Disposition
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Entering a Termination Date
	Entering a Termination Date
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Modify a Registration
	Modify a Registration
	Modify a Registration
	Modify a Registration
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Cancel a Registration
	Cancel a Registration
	Cancel a Registration
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Check a Registration Status
	Check a Registration Status
	Check a Registration Status
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Change Your Own Password
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Adding a Provider Agency User
	Adding a Provider Agency User
	Adding a Provider Agency �User
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Modifying a Provider Agency User
	Modifying a Provider Agency User
	Modify a Provider Agency User 
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Deleting a Provider Agency User
	Deleting a Provider Agency User
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Change the Name on your Organization’s Correspondence 
	Change the Name on your Organization’s Correspondence 
	Change the Name on your Organization’s Correspondence* 
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Provider Administrator Password Reset*
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	Acronyms, Terms & Definitions
	Acronyms, Terms & Definitions
	National Background Check  Program (NBCP) ��
	References & Resources
	Thank you!�For Further Information �Please Contact:��Rob Walsh, MBA�Liaison-National Background Check Program�E-mail: robert.a.walsh-jr@hpe.com

